
City Council Business Meeting Minutes 
December 13, 2022 

Mayor: Robert Duncan, Presiding 
Council President: Mike Caughey, Present 
Councilors: Kimberly Downey, Adam Keaton, and Randy Klemm (by phone) 
Councilors Absent: Robert Boese and Charlotte Thomas 
Staff Present:  City Administrator Michele Eldridge, Public Works Director Chuck 

Scholz, Finance Officer/Deputy City Recorder Cathy Nelson and 
City Recorder/Municipal Court Clerk Lori Ross 

 Location: Harrisburg Municipal Center Located at 354 Smith St 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL by Mayor, Robert Duncan at the hour of 6:35pm 

CONCERNED CITIZEN(S) IN THE AUDIENCE. All in attendance were there for items on the 
agenda.   

THE MATTER OF MEETING WITH A MEMBER REPRESENTATIVE FROM LCSO IF ONE IS 
AVAILABLE  
STAFF REPORT:  Deputy Alex Wilson presented the stats for November and December 2022. 
He introduced himself to Council stating he has been with LCSO for two years and has been 
assigned to Harrisburg since April.   He commented that he has been working at the school 
district and enjoys the interaction with the students.   
• Downey asked about the issue porch pirates and if it was related to the recent farm

thefts.  Deputy Wilson responded he doesn’t want to speculate, but it’s possible.
• Scholz informed Deputy Wilson that Public Works is very familiar with vehicles

parked around town and if they are ever looking for one, to contact him and they
would be happy to assist.

• Resident Gordon Moritz asked about mail theft.  Deputy Wilson responded that
currently there is an issue with mail theft and unfortunately checks that originated in
Harrisburg are being cashed in different states.



Harrisburg City Council Business Meeting Minutes 
December 13, 2022 

2 

THE MATTER OF APPROVING RESOLUTION NO. 1272 IN ORDER TO ACCEPT THE 
CANVASS OF ELECTION VOTES FROM THE NOVEMBER 8, 2022, GENERAL ELECTION 
STAFF REPORT:    Ross congratulated the newly elected officials.  No other discussion. 

• Caughey motioned to approve Resolution No. 1272, “A RESOLUTION
ACCEPTING THE CANVASS  OF ELECTION VOTES FROM THE
NOVEMBER 8, 2022, GENERAL ELECTION FOR HARRISBURG  CITY
COUNCIL POSITIONS (MAYOR AND 3 COUNCIL POSITIONS) AND
HARRISBURG MEASURE 22-192 PROHIBITS ESTABLISHMENT OF
PSILOCYBIN MANUFACTURING AND SERVICE CENTERS  IN
HARRISBURG" and was seconded by Downey.  The motioned passed
unanimously by a vote  of 4-0. (Yes: Caughey, Downey, Keaton, and
Klemm.)

THE MATTER OF A PROPOSAL TO MODIFY THE CURRENT SOLID WASTE FRANCHISE 
RATE FOR REPUBLIC SERVICES, TO REFLECT A 9% INCREASE TO CURRENT RATES, 
BASED ON THE RATE REFUSE INDEX  
STAFF REPORT: Eldridge introduced Ken Larson with Republic Services and explained the  
reason for this appearance and commented this is the highest rate increase since 2017. She  
referred to page 83 of the agenda that shows rate comparisons. She noted that the  
City Council can set another fee schedule if they choose.   
• Eldridge asked about Republic Services providing a dumpster for all citizens for

excess garbage or junk on clean-up day.  Larson suggested having a targeted
venue, so not everyone is needing the service at the same time.

• Downey asked about large items and how residents go about contacting Republic
Services for assistance.  Larson referred to Addendum 1 which shows recycling
guidelines and contact information for larger items. He noted a fee is associated.

• Larson stated that even though the Refuse Rate Index (RRI) suggested a 13.4%
increase, they are requesting 9%, which averages about $2.46 per resident and
stated the increase is due to the rising fuel, labor and operation costs like the
printing costs associated with the materials distributed to customers as required by
the DEQ.

• Downey commented that the cost of fuel is going down, but she does understand
labor cost.  She doesn’t like the 9% increase and wants to meet halfway.  Larson
replied that Republic Services feel this is a fair price as they have recycling cost
also.

• Resident, Gordon Moritz asked if they only service Linn County and Larson replied
they have most of Linn County and Benton County.

• Klemm referred to the rate comparison chart on page 85 and wanted clarification of
the rate increases indicated as it appears the only increase is $4.00 for the 32-
gallon container.  Larson noted there is some confusion with the chart.  Klemm and
Caughey remarked that the numbers are inconsistent, and they don’t want to vote
until they have clarification.  Mayor Duncan also commented that he would like
more clarity before voting.  Eldridge requested both industrial and commercial rates
to be included in the new information.

• Larson briefly spoke of the Plastic Recycling Act which will help with the confusion
of what’s recyclable.  He noted the changes won’t be seen until 2025 but you can
track the status on the DEQ website.



Harrisburg City Council Business Meeting Minutes 
December 13, 2022 

3 

• Downey motioned to table until the next meeting, held on January 10th,
2023, and was seconded by Caughey.  The  motion passed by a vote
of 4-0. (Yes: Caughey, Downey,  Keaton and Klemm.)

THE MATTER OF APPOINTING TODD CULVER AND KURT KAYNER TO THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION FOR A TERM ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2026 
STAFF REPORT:   Mayor Duncan commented that he was happy to see Todd Culver apply 
once again for the Planning Commission and that Culver loves Harrisburg.   

• Downey motioned to appoint Todd Culver and Kurt Kayner to the
Planning Commission for terms ending December 31, 2026 and  was
seconded by Keaton.  The motion passed unanimously by a vote of 4-
0. (Yes:  Caughey, Downey, Keaton and Klemm.)

THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE 1ST QUARTER 2022/2023 EXPENSE REPORT 
STAFF REPORT: Nelson stated this is the 1st Quarter Budget for July through September. She 
noted that only 2% of property taxes have been collected which is normal as most are received 
in November.   

• Keaton motioned to approve the 1st Quarter 2022/2023 Expense Report
and was seconded by Caughey.  The motion passed unanimously by a
vote of 4-0. (Yes: Caughey, Downey, Keaton, and Klemm.)

THE MATTER OF A DISCUSSION IN RELATION TO THE OREGON MAYORS 
ASSOCIATION (OMA) TASKFORCE ON HOMELESSNESS 
STAFF REPORT:   Eldridge explained the two proposals going to the legislature in 2023 and 
stated that she thought this might be a useful program for abatement clean up and perhaps 
some assistance for God’s Storehouse.  She also thought this might assist with cleanup of 
Eagle Park as the City would need to rent a dumpster and pay staff to work on the weekend. 
She informed Council that it would cost about $625 per day for LCSO to have a work crew clean 
up Eagle Park.  She noted there were some drawbacks as indicated in the staff report.  She 
referred to Exhibit A, on page 20 which indicates the types of services offered.   
• Downey commented that she gets nervous getting involved with other organizations,

she wants to help but doesn’t want to change our community.  Downey asked if we
don’t take the funds, will it go to another community and Eldridge replied yes.

• Keaton stated he is concerned about taking free money as it typically doesn’t stay
free.

• Klemm asked about the funds for cleaning up Eagle Park and Eldridge indicated
that we don’t have a designated fund, but we could transfer from another fund like
parks or miscellaneous.

• The consensus from City Council was to not get involved yet.

THE MATTER OF UPDATING THE NATURAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN (NHMP) 
STAFF REPORT:  Eldridge informed Council that she is getting mixed information from the 
Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) on whether we need to have an 
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) or a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for the Hazard 
Mitigation Plan. Our current Addendum expires, May 23rd of this year and she thinks it’s 
important to have one.  This will likely be brought bring back to a future meeting.      



Harrisburg City Council Business Meeting Minutes 
December 13, 2022 

4 

THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE CONSENT LIST:  No comments or concerns.  
• Downey motioned to approve the consent list and was seconded by

Caughey.  The motion passed unanimously by a vote of 4-0. (Yes:
Caughey, Downey, Keaton and Klemm.)
A motion to approve the consent list will approve the following:

• City Council Minutes for August 23, October 11, October 25, and
November 8, 2022.

• The Payment Approval Report for November 2022

OTHERS: 
• Eldridge informed Council she submitted the TMDL matrix for mercury today.  She

also informed Pricilla Woolverton it would be helpful if the DEQ would have
provided a person to assist cities with completing it. Scholz and Downey voiced
their frustration with this process and dealing with Woolverton. Keaton asked
whether the state was providing any funding for doing this since it is a requirement
and was told no by Scholz.   Mayor Duncan asked if anyone has contacted a
representative and Eldridge stated she has contacted the LOC.  Keaton suggested
reaching out to Jamie Cate.

• Eldridge informed Council that Butterfly Gardens, on N 7th St, is almost ready to
begin building. Shadowood is dealing with a new engineer and wetlands still.
Redwood Apartments, off S 6th St, is getting closer to filing the plat.  Don Hickman,
on Sommerville Lp, has submitted a minor partition to create three single residential
parcels.

• Eldridge asked Council to please review the current Strategic Plan for a future
meeting.

• Eldridge informed Council that we are reviewing the MOU with Junction City as
Building Permit Inspector Russ Young, will be working remotely two days a week
as he will be moving to Idaho.  He will be available in person Tuesdays through
Thursdays.

• Eldridge informed Council that former employee Grace Coffey’s memorial service
was Sunday.  Mayor Duncan and Eldridge acknowledged their appreciation for her.

• Eldridge referred to Addendum 2 regarding registration for City Day at the Capital
and asked that anyone interested in attending to please contact her by January
19th.

• Eldridge informed Council that she and Caughey met with the LOC Director on
Monday, and she felt the Director listened to their concerns about more advocacy
and having a dedicated person of their legislative staff for small cities.

• Eldridge informed Council she will be leaving for vacation and will be back on the
30th of December.

• Eldridge informed Council that the reader board is now working.
• Downey reminded everyone that the City Administrator’s review is coming up.

Ross stated the review will be going out to everyone in January and the meeting is
set for February 7th.  It was recommended by Scholz and Ross to remove the
itemized staff from the review and list only Council; Planning and Staff as choice for
who submitted the review.

The City Council Work Session recessed at the hour of 8:00pm for the HRA Board 
Meeting. 

The HRA Board Meeting adjourned at the hour of 8:39pm, and City Council resumed at 
the hour of 8:39pm.   



Harrisburg City Council Business Meeting Minutes 
December 13, 2022 

5 

THE MATTER OF A DISCUSSION IN RELATION TO THE BNSF FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
EXTENSION IN EXECUTIVE SESSION UNDER ORS 192.660(1)(2)(H), and APPROVING  
ORDINANCE NO. 988, “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 798, AND  
EXTENDING THE LENGTH OF THE FRANCHISE UNTIL ______, 2023”.   

The Mayor declared an Executive Session as per ORS 192.660 (1)(2)(H) at the hour of 
8:39pm. 

The City Council exited the Executive Session at the hour of 8:54pm and returned to the 
City Council Work Session.  

• Keaton motioned to approve Ordinance No. 988, “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING
ORDINANCE NO. 798, AND EXTENDING THE LENGTH OF THE FRANCHISE
UNTIL JUNE 30, 2023” and was seconded by Downey.  The motion passed
unanimously by a vote of 4-0. (Yes: Caughey, Downey, Keaton, and Klemm.)

With no further discussion, the City Council Work Session adjourned at the hour of 
8:57pm.   

____________________ ____________________ 
Mayor  City Recorder 
















